
LEWIS AND CLARK LIBRARY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
Tuesday May 21, 2019 5:00 p.m.   
Helena Main Library 
120 S Last Chance Gulch 
Helena, MT 59601 
 

 
Memo 

To: Library Board of Trustees 
From: John Finn, Director 
Date: May 13, 2019  
Re:  April 2019 reports for the Board 

The Month That Was: The Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees last met on Tuesday April 16, 
2019 at the Helena Main Library.  Trustees Franzen, Schramm, Whearty, and Fandrich were 
present.  Library Director Finn, Administrative Manager Sternberg, and Children Services 
Librarian Molly Hudson were also present. Steve Engle, member of the public, was present for 
Public Comment.  
 
Mr. Engle relayed his admiration for the Library and staff. He noted that he looks forward to 
renovations and remodel that lie ahead for the Library. He had some suggestions for the Library 
Construction Team to consider while moving forward with the planning process. Mr. Engle had 
suggestions about furnishings and noise levels and noise abatement.  
 
Molly Hudson introduced herself to the Board. She told the Board a bit about herself. She is 
feeling very welcome at the Library.  
 
The Board approved the consent items.  
 
�d�Z���Œ�����Á���•�����Œ�]���(�����]�•���µ�•�•�]�}�v�������}�µ�š���•�š���(�(�����}�v�����Œ�v�•�������}�µ�š���t�}�Œ�l���Œ�[�•�����}�u�‰���v�•���š�]�}�v���]�v�•�µ�Œ���v�������Œ���š���•�U��
the free parking benefit that staff receives, and the use of Lot 8.  Board asked that staff take a 
wait and see approach to�Á���Œ���•���‰�}�š���v�š�]���o���]�v���Œ�����•���•���]�v���t�}�Œ�l���Œ�[�•�����}�u�‰���‰�Œ���u�]�µ�u�•�X 
 
Finn presented the Board with a compendium of Statewide Library statistics from 2016 (the last 
year these statistics were gathered). The Board felt that the stats were interesting and noted 
that Lewis & Clark Library compares favorably to other large libraries in the state.  
 
Finn told the Board who were not at the Design Workshop how the event went. Trustees 
Franzen and Whearty were both impressed with the process and found it very worthwhile to 
have attended.  

 





 

 

BOARD MISSION STATEMENT 

 

The mission of the Lewis and Clark 

Library is to provide the best possible 

services and materials for 

informational, cultural or recreational 

use by the community. 

 

The mission of the Board of Trustees of 

the Lewis and Clark Library is to 

advance the mission of the library. 

 

 

 

 

 

Formally Adopted by the Board of 

Trustees October 17, 2006 

3 



LEWIS & CLARK LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
LIBRARY ACRONYMS 

 
ALA  American Library Association 

APOP ‘Annual Piece of Paper’ – the yearly formal employee review process 

BVF  Broad Valleys Federation 

CST  Coal Severance Tax 

EHB  East Helena Branch of the Lewis & Clark Library 

FDN  Lewis & Clark Library Public Foundation 

HAT  ‘How Are Things?’ the informal quarterly employee review system 

ILL  Interlibrary Loan 

IMLS  Institute of Museum and Library Services 

LSTA  Library Services and Technology Act 

L.O.V’s  Library Outreach Volunteers 

MCH  Montana Committee for the Humanities 

MLA  Montana Library Association 

    PLD  Public Library Division 

    ASLD  Academic and Special Library Division 

    SLMD School and Library Media Division 

MLN  Montana Library Network 

MSC  Montana Shared Catalog 

MSL  Montana State Library 

NAC  Network Advisory Council 

NLS  National Library Service 

OCLC  Online Center Library Catalog 

OPAC   Online Public Access Catalog 

RFID  Radio Frequency Identification (book security tags) 

RSVP  Retired Service Volunteer Program 

RMDC  Rocky Mountain Development Council 

WIRED-MT Montana Library Listserv 

 

4 



 
  
 
 

 LEWIS AND CLARK LIBRARY 
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

Tuesday May 21, 2019 5:00 p.m.   
Helena Main Library 
120 S Last Chance Gulch 
Helena, MT 59601 

 
   
 
 
 

 
A   G   E   N   D   A 

 
Reading of the Board’s Mission Statement 

1) Public Comment 
 

2) CONSENT ITEMS for May 2019  
A. Minutes of the April 16, 2019 Regular Meeting  
B. Service Report for April 2019 

 C. Financial Report for April 2019 
 D. General Ledger for April 2019 
 E. Personnel Report for April 2019  
 
MOTION . . . that the Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees approve the Consent Items as 
presented. 

 
3) NEW BUSINESS 
A. Board By-Laws First Reading 
B. Trustee Training recap and discussion – Waterman 
C. June meeting in Lincoln 
D. Director Evaluation Committee Appointment 
E. Officer Nominations Committee Appointment 
F. Board Search Committee Appointment 

 
4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. Construction Team work and progress 

 
5) DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS  
 
6) COMMITTEE REPORTS   
 
7) COMMENTS FROM TRUSTEES 
WRAP-UP and ADJOURN – Next Board Meeting – June 18, 2019 at TBD 

5 



 
 
 
Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees   Minutes of the April 16, 2019 Meeting                                        

Lewis & Clark Library 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Main Branch 
April 16, 2019 

 

 
 

MINUTES 
 

 

BOARD MEMBERS: Niki Whearty, Jesse Franzen, LeRoy Schramm, 
Helen Fandrich. 

 

STAFF MEMBERS:  John Finn, Patricia Sternberg, Children’s Services 
Librarian Molly Hudson. 

 
OTHERS PRESENT: Steve Engle, patron. 

 
Vice-Chair Whearty called the meeting to order at 5:04 p.m.  

 
Trustees Waterman and Fandrich excused. 

 
Whearty read the Board Mission Statement. 

 
1) PUBLIC COMMENT Vice-Chair Whearty called for Public Comment. 

Patron Steve Engle shared with the Board that he is looking forward 
to the renovations to the Main Branch. He is a strong library user and 

hopes that the public computers will not be eliminated during the 

remodel. He would also like some more of the rolling staff chairs 
brought downstairs – the chairs in the computer lab are very 

uncomfortable. In the bathrooms, he believes that people will be 
more inclined to wash their hands if paper towels are available. He 

read that the children’s area would be enlarged. As a patron, his 
suggestion is to enclose the children’s area to keep the noise down 

and the children from running amok in the library. He loves the 
library and believes there can be a happy compromise.   

 

6 



 
 
 
Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees   Minutes of the April 16, 2019 Meeting                                        

2) STAFF REPORT Molly Hudson, new Children’s Services Librarian, 

told the Trustees a little about herself. Her first week at the Library 
was very full with on-boarding and her second week was the MLA 

Conference. She feels very welcome here. 
 

3) CONSENT ITEMS 
 

Franzen/Schramm moved that the Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees 
approve the Consent Items as presented. 

 
A. Minutes – March 2019. No discussion. 

 
B. Service Report – March 2019. Whearty noted that the 2nd 

column heading from the right should read ‘February 2019’ not 
‘February 2018’.  

 

C. Financial Report – March 2019. Schramm noted the possibility 
of a good reserve fund transfer at the end of June. Finn noted 

that upcoming payments to the architects and the consultant will 
affect the transfer amount. Sternberg explained where the 

interest income comes from and how it will change once we start 
spending down the Depreciation Reserve fund.   

  
D. General Ledger – March 2019. Schramm asked about 

contracted services expenses for the new custodian. Finn noted 
that Orville has been a great asset and will be hired by the 

Library when the contract is completed. Franzen noted an 
incorrect entry under Lincoln programming. Finn explained that 

the Library has contracted for staff coaching, working with 
departments to incorporate new staff and leadership training for 

managers. 

 
E. Personnel Report – March 2019. No changes.  

 
MOTION passed unanimously. 

 
Trustee Fandrich joined the meeting at this time. 

  
4) NEW BUSINESS 

 
 

7 



 
 
 
Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees   Minutes of the April 16, 2019 Meeting                                        

A. Parking Lot Liability Discussion Finn discussed the details of a 

Workers Compensation claim for a staff injury that occurred in City 
Lot 8. The Library pays for parking passes for the lot and because 

of that is directly tied to the lot for Workers Compensation claims. 
Sternberg expressed concern that the compensation claims from 

this year may increase our required contributions for FY2020.   
 

5) UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
A. Statewide Library Statistics  In response to Waterman’s request, 

Finn went to the State Library for comparative statistics from other 
Montana libraries. Finn explained that the State Library lost funding 

for their data coordinator in 2017, so these stats are from 2016. 
There was discussion of how different library policies can affect 

statistics. The Trustees found the comparative statistics interesting 
and noted that Lewis & Clark Library compares well. Finn believes 

once the Library is part of the Shared Catalog, circulation and ILL 

will go up as well.      
 

B. Renovation Project Update Last evening was the staff design 
workshop. Mosaic Architects presented two different plans they put 

together after staff interviews and observation time at the Library 
itself. Staff gave input on the two different designs and found a 

couple of sticking places that will need to be worked through. There 
was discussion of public computer spaces and other ideas. Whearty 

noted her appreciation of the Mosaic process during the design 
workshop. 

 
6) DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS 

NEW LOGO – Finn shared the new logo with the Trustees. The logo 
was designed by local artist Luke Duran and includes a design style 

guide. Once the new logo is in place, the promotional budget will be 

used to rebrand the Library signage, stationery, business cards, the 
new book bike, etc. Duran has offered to design the bookmobile wrap 

as well.  
DIGITAL MEDIA - Hoopla has grown so popular in the last two 

years that the number of checkouts per patron per month may need 
to drop down for cost purposes. It was noted that people may rely 

more heavily on online resources during the construction. Whearty 
noted she would like mini-trainings on RBDigital, MTOverdrive and 

Hoopla.    
 

8 



 
 
 
Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees   Minutes of the April 16, 2019 Meeting                                        

7) COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 
8) COMMENTS FROM TRUSTEES Whearty attended the MLA 

Conference. Library staff were presenters, helped with the 
technology and were instrumental to the conference. She really 

appreciated Teen Services Librarian Dickerson and Collection 
Management Librarian Parrott’s presentations. She also attended the 

Disruptive Patron workshop.  
 

9) WRAP UP 
  

 The May Board meeting will be Tuesday, May 21, 2019 at 5 p.m. at 
the Main Branch of the Lewis & Clark Library.  

 
10) ADJOURN – The meeting adjourned at 6:15 p.m. 

 

                                                       Niki Whearty, Vice-Chair 
_____________________________________ 

Niki Whearty, Vice-Chair April 16, 2019 

9 



2019 2018 Year to Year 2019 Month to Month

April April Change March Change

Attendance 24,631 23,697 3.9% 23,429 5.1%
Augusta 229 298 -23.2% 219 4.6%

East Helena 995 1,029 -3.3% 1,022 -2.6%

Helena 21,995 21,402 2.8% 20,998 4.7%

Lincoln 468 446 4.9% 472 -0.8%

Bookmobile 944 522 80.8% 718 31.5%

Hours Open         692.00 670.00 3.3% 686.00 0.9%
Augusta 110 108 1.9% 104 5.8%

East Helena 149 136 9.6% 148 0.7%  

Helena 248 267 -7.1% 271 -8.5%  

Lincoln 102 100 2.0% 102 0.0%

Bookmobile 83 59 40.7% 61 36.1%

Hourly Average 81 83 -2.2% 84 -3.3%

TOTAL TRANSACTIONS 56,234 55,645 1.1% 57,662 -2.5%

New Cards 272 231 17.7% 292 -6.8%
Augusta 1 3 -66.7% 3 -66.7%

East Helena 4 5 -20.0% 10 -60.0%

Helena 257 215 19.5% 261 -1.5%

Lincoln 2 2 0.0% 1 100.0%  

Bookmobile 8 6 33.3% 17 -52.9%

New E-Book Users 109 104 4.8% 114 -4.4%

Materials Checked Out 38,256 38,260 0.0% 40,486 -5.5%
City of Helena 20,433 20,333 0.5% 21,077 -3.1%

Lewis & Clark County 7,263 8,643 -16.0% 8,947 -18.8%

 Augusta Library 300 409 -26.7% 246 22.0%

 East Helena Library 593 475 24.8% 594 -0.2%

 Lincoln Library 388 377 2.9% 342 13.5%

 Bookmobile 1,496 1,053 42.1% 1,098 36.2%

 Interlibrary Loan 533 491 8.6% 496 7.5%

E-Audio 3,460 2,917 18.6% 3,603 -4.0%

E-Books 3,041 2,759 10.2% 3,359 -9.5%

Out of County 749 803 -6.7% 724 3.5%

Self Check-Outs 14,330 9,798 46.3% 15,130 -5.3%

System-Wide   Adopt A Book 1,768 989 78.8% 2,392 -26.1%

Outreach 0 0 N/A 0 N/A

April 2019

SERVICE REPORT

10 



2019 2018 Year to Year 2019 Month to Month

April April Change March Change

Materials Used in House 4,607 5,187 -11.2% 4,984 -7.6%

Periodicals Retrieved            Augusta 12 19 -36.8% 18 -33.3%  

East Helena 67 79 -15.2% 64 4.7%

Lincoln 66 87 -24.1% 51 29.4%

Magazines on Tables            Augusta 1 0 N/A 2 -50.0%

East Helena 30 27 11.1% 31 -3.2%

Helena 992 1,172 -15.4% 1,084 -8.5%

Lincoln 57 46 23.9% 47 21.3%

Books Left on Table              Augusta 1 1 0.0% 0 N/A

East Helena 25 15 66.7% 5 400.0%

Helena 3,320 3,658 -9.2% 3,628 -8.5%

Lincoln 36 83 -56.6% 54 -33.3%

 

Information and Reference 3,103 2,779 11.7% 2,439 27.2%
Reference 3,002 2,684 11.8% 2,332 28.7%

Database use 101 95 6.3% 107 -5.6%

 

Internet Sign Up/Computer Users 7,435 7,601 -2.2% 6,484 14.7%
Augusta 27 41 -34.1% 24 12.5%

East Helena 156 163 -4.3% 131 19.1%  

Helena 3,004 3,464 -13.3% 2,733 9.9%

Helena staff walk-abouts 235 298 -21.1% 242 -2.9%

Bookmobile 4 0 N/A 1 300.0%

Lincoln 242 230 5.2% 219 10.5%

Wireless Use 3746 3405 10.0% 3134 19.5%

 Laptop Checkouts 21 34 -38.2% 32 -34.4%

# Programs Story Time Attendance 928 416 123.1% 894 3.8%
9 Augusta 9 28 -67.9% 27 -66.7%

4 East Helena 61 31 96.8% 35 74.3%

18 Helena 558 193 189.1% 640 -12.8%

4 Lincoln 34 16 112.5% 22 54.5%

16 Bookmobile 266 148 79.7% 170 56.5%  

11 



2019 2018 Year to Year 2019 Month to Month

April April Change March Change

# Programs Tours,  Program & Outreach 1,633 1,171 39.5% 2,083 -21.6%  

23 Helena/Adult 273 152 79.6% 401 -31.9%

3 Helena/Juv 50 697 -92.8% 0 N/A

6 Helena/Teen 72 97 -25.8% 160 -55.0%

4 Teen Outreach 40 52 -23.1% 120 -66.7%  

3 Director Outreach 1000 60 1566.7% 1000 0.0%

2 Bookmobile 89 176 -49.4% 256 -65.2%

4 Augusta 34 29 17.2% 18 88.9%

10 East Helena 53 39 35.9% 79 -32.9%

5 Lincoln 22 45 -51.1% 49 -55.1%

30 Detention Center - Requests/Filled 78 0 N/A 87 -10.3%

Meeting Room Usage 177 178 -0.6% 173 2.3%
Augusta 2 3 -33.3% 1 100.0%

Helena 149 144 3.5% 146 2.1%

East Helena 5 5 0.0% 2 150.0%

Lincoln 21 26 -19.2% 24 -12.5%  

Registered Borrowers 28,730 33,005 -13.0% 28,451 1.0%
Helena 26,087 30,025 -13.1% 25,830 1.0%

Augusta 268 297 -9.8% 267 0.4%

 East Helena 686 830 -17.3% 682 0.6%  

Bookmobile 341 409 -16.6% 339 0.6%

Lincoln 442 529 -16.4% 435 1.6%

Out-of-County 906 915 -1.0% 898 0.9%

Volunteer Hours Worked 329 167 97.0% 218 50.9%  

Volunteer Hours 54 62 -12.9% 48 12.5%

  Library Board Hours 150 15 900.0% 70 114.3%

Foundation Board Hours 100 65 53.8% 100 0.0%

EHB Friends of the Library Hours 25 25 0.0% 0 N/A  

   Out of County % of Circulation 1.7% 2.0% -13.8% 1.5% 10.5%

# of Borrowers Checking Out Materials 3,309 3,438 -3.8% 3,578 -7.5%

Web Site Hits 17,441 22,625 -22.9% 21,498 -18.9%

Social Media  Hits Adult, Teen, BkMobile 3,632 3,110 16.8% 3,585 1.3%  

Mobile Application Uses 100 7,334 -98.6% 98 2.0% 1

EdVenture Pass Uses 5 8 -37.5% 17 -70.6%

New Mobile App Footnote 1

12 



 Lewis Clark Library

 Financial Report

April 30, 2019

 83% of Year Elapsed

17% of Year Remaining

Month of April 

2019

Year to Date 

June 30, 2019
Fiscal Year 

2019 Budget

Budget 

Remaining

% of Budget 

Remaining Footnotes

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

1 Local Government Income

Continuing Mill Levy 0 1,161,813 2,084,159 922,346 44.3%

County Contribution 0 572,236 996,066 423,830 42.6%

Entitlement Funds 0 274,496 404,231 129,735 32.1%

Total 1 Local Government Income 0 2,008,545 3,484,456 1,475,911 42.4% 1

2 State Income

BVF Coal Severance Tax 0 5,768 5,768 0 0.0%

BVF Grant 407 2,251 1,480 -771 -52.1% 2

Total 2 State Income 407 8,019 7,248 -771 -10.6%

3 Library Generated Income

Books Lost 300 4,493 4,500 7 0.2%

Cards - Out of County 270 4,630 5,000 370 7.4%

Cash Over (Short) 0 0 25 25 100.0%

Damage Charges 18 207 300 93 31.0%

Donations 18 997 1,000 3 0.3%

Fines/Late Charges 1,486 24,625 30,000 5,375 17.9%

Interest Income 0 87,883 30,000 -57,883 -192.9% 3

Items Resold 86 1,112 800 -312 -39.0%

Miscellaneous Income 0 1,838 500 -1,338 -267.6%

Photocopy Income 904 9,114 12,000 2,886 24.1%

Rental Income 0 2,590 2,880 290 10.1%

Telephone Reimb. 0 293 300 7 2.3%

Total 3 Library Generated Income 3,082 137,782 87,305 -50,477 -57.8%

5 Foundation Income

Foundation - Contributions 6,631 7,549 25,500 17,951 70.4%

Foundation - Materials 0 34,996 65,000 30,004 46.2% 4

Total 5 Foundation Income 6,631 42,545 90,500 47,955 53.0%

6  Grants & Bequests - Income

Big Read Grant 0 20,000 20,000 0 0.0%

Children's Services Grant Income 500 500 2,000 1,500 75.0%

Teen Services Grant Income 0 250 2,000 1,750 87.5%

6  Grants & Bequests - Income - Other 0 0 1,500 1,500 100.0%

Total 6  Grants & Bequests - Income 500 20,750 25,500 4,750 18.6%

Total Income 10,620 2,217,641 3,695,009 1,477,368 40.0%

Expense

1 Payroll Expenses

A Wages & Salaries

Administration 39,156 432,591 533,548 100,957 18.9%

Anticipated Retirements 0 8,946 30,000 21,054 70.2%

Branch Services 19,954 222,872 269,636 46,764 17.3%

Collection Services 15,703 206,576 282,525 75,949 26.9%

Public Services 47,886 532,003 649,673 117,670 18.1%

Total A Wages & Salaries 122,699 1,402,988 1,765,382 362,394 20.5%

Benefits

ACC-Accident 33 197 500 303 60.6%

AFLAC 48 384 1,000 616 61.6%

Dental Insurance 1,100 11,201 15,600 4,399 28.2%

Direct Deposit Fees 174 1,975 2,730 755 27.7%

E A P 16 168 350 182 52.0%

FICA/Medicare 9,089 104,014 140,779 36,765 26.1%

Health Insurance 18,807 197,212 280,800 83,588 29.8%

Life Insurance 24 161 400 239 59.8%

Long Term Disability Insurance 5 58 200 142 71.0%

PERS Expense 10,246 117,512 157,709 40,197 25.5%

Unemployment Ins. 1,392 6,719 6,000 -719 -12.0% 6

Vision Insurance 198 2,063 3,360 1,297 38.6%

Workers' Compensation 0 19,529 15,000 -4,529 -30.2% 7

Total Benefits 41,132 461,193 624,428 163,235 26.1%

13 



Month of April 

2019

Year to Date 

June 30, 2019
Fiscal Year 

2019 Budget

Budget 

Remaining

% of Budget 

Remaining Footnotes

Total 1 Payroll Expenses 163,831 1,864,181 2,389,810 525,630 22.0%

2  Maintenance & Operations

Automobile Expense

Gas 277 4,080 6,000 1,920 32.0%

Maint. & Repairs 0 3,844 9,000 5,156 57.3%

Total Automobile Expense 277 7,924 15,000 7,076 47.2%

Bank Service Charges 0 1,291 3,000 1,709 57.0%

BVF Retreat/Spring Meeting 146 1,509 5,768 4,259 73.8%

City Assessments 0 5,337 5,500 163 3.0% 8

Continuing Education

Lodging 2,157 5,513 10,000 4,487 44.9%

Meals 1,152 3,919 4,500 581 12.9%

Registration 1,500 6,786 10,500 3,714 35.4%

Transportation/Travel 783 4,640 5,000 360 7.2%

Total Continuing Education 5,592 20,858 30,000 9,142 30.5%

Contracted Services

Adult Services Programming 1,309 29,384 31,500 2,116 6.7%

Advertising & Publicity 1,936 34,259 37,000 2,741 7.4%

Augusta Programming 90 588 1,500 912 60.8%

Bookmobile Programming 49 1,332 2,000 668 33.4%

Collection Fee 107 1,647 2,000 353 17.7%

Director Outreach 0 1,235 1,500 265 17.7%

East Helena Programming 29 934 1,500 566 37.7%

Lincoln Programming 0 625 1,500 875 58.3%

Promotional Materials 0 768 10,000 9,232 92.3%

Teen Services Programming 606 9,359 14,000 4,641 33.2%

Youth Services Programming 0 2,370 14,000 11,630 83.1%

Contracted Services - Other 3,075 21,274 40,000 18,726 46.8%

Total Contracted Services 7,201 103,775 156,500 52,725 33.7%

Dues and Memberships 0 2,706 4,000 1,294 32.4%

Freight 0 0 500 500 100.0%

Insurance 0 19,659 38,000 18,341 48.3%

Interlibrary Loan Fees 5 340 600 260 43.3%

Legal Notices & Recruitments 368 1,018 4,000 2,982 74.6%

Mileage Reimbursements 165 1,542 3,500 1,958 55.9%

Miscellaneous 0 0 1,500 1,500 100.0%

Photocopy Charges 0 3,706 7,000 3,294 47.1%

Postage and Delivery 98 13,859 23,000 9,141 39.7%

Printing 336 1,845 5,000 3,155 63.1%

Professional Fees

Accounting 94 9,044 10,000 956 9.6% 9

Consulting 5,102 13,098 25,000 11,902 47.6%

Total Professional Fees 5,196 22,142 35,000 12,858 36.7%

Refunds 49 276 1,500 1,224 81.6%

Rents and Leases 2,000 22,000 25,200 3,200 12.7%

Repairs & Maintenance

Building Repair & Maintenance 4,982 57,661 75,000 17,339 23.1%

Furniture Repair & Acquisition 2,250 7,517 30,000 22,483 74.9%

Systems Upgrade, Maintenance & Repair 3,145 111,574 161,700 50,126 31.0%

Total Repairs & Maintenance 10,377 176,752 266,700 89,948 33.7%

Supplies

Computer 371 9,707 16,000 6,293 39.3%

Janitorial 530 7,211 9,000 1,789 19.9%

Office 561 8,629 17,000 8,371 49.2%

Supplies - Other 446 4,504 5,500 996 18.1%

Total Supplies 1,908 30,051 47,500 17,449 36.7%

14 



 Lewis Clark Library

 Financial Report

April 30, 2019

 83% of Year Elapsed

17% of Year Remaining

Month of April 

2019

Year to Date 

June 30, 2019
Fiscal Year 

2019 Budget

Budget 

Remaining

% of Budget 

Remaining Footnotes

Telephone

Local Service 878 8,815 12,500 3,685 29.5%

Long Distance 115 995 2,500 1,505 60.2%

Network/Data Lines 968 16,863 20,000 3,137 15.7%

Total Telephone 1,961 26,673 35,000 8,327 23.8%

Utilities

Gas and Electric 5,270 45,573 68,000 22,427 33.0%

Water/Sewer/Sanitation 678 9,274 9,000 -274 -3.0%

Total Utilities 5,948 54,847 77,000 22,153 28.8%

Total 2  Maintenance & Operations 41,627 518,110 790,768 272,658 34.5%

3 Capital Outlay

Equipment Purchases 0 0 8,000 8,000 100.0%

Facilities Projects 0 21,807 37,500 15,693 41.8%

Martha Hawkins Bequest 0 0 5,000 5,000 100.0%

Transfer to Depreciation Reserve Fund 0 0 80,000 80,000 100.0%

Total 3 Capital Outlay 0 21,807 130,500 108,693 83.3%

4 Books & Materials

Adult material 0 0 3,000 3,000 100.0%

AV - Adult 2,029 24,161 41,000 16,839 41.1%

AV - Juvenile 20 3,037 6,000 2,963 49.4%

AV Teen 0 2,186 8,000 5,814 72.7%

Bibliographic Services 0 6,248 8,000 1,752 21.9%

Databases 0 22,508 24,000 1,492 6.2%

Downloadable Media 705 61,648 77,000 15,352 19.9%

FDN Purchase of Books 4,708 54,459 65,000 10,541 16.2%

Juvenile Material 831 15,791 26,000 10,209 39.3%

Leased Material 0 11,941 25,000 13,059 52.2%

Library of Things 0 560 2,000 1,440 72.0%

Periodicals 16 11,625 12,000 375 3.1%

Preservation & Processing 704 11,114 14,000 2,886 20.6%

Reference Material 0 9,827 7,000 -2,827 -40.4%

Teen Material 897 6,888 11,000 4,112 37.4%

Total 4 Books & Materials 9,910 241,993 329,000 87,007 26.4% 9

Grants and Bequests Expenditure

Big Read Expenditures 0 20,000 20,000 0 0.0%

Children's Services Grant Expenditure 0 1,974 2,000 26 1.3%

Foundation Contribution Expenditure 378 6,869 25,500 18,631 73.1%

Public Art Fund Expenditures 0 0 1,000 1,000 100.0%

Teen Services Grant Expenditure 0 1,810 2,000 190 9.5%

Grants and Bequests- Other 0 0 3,200 3,200 100.0%

Total Grants and Bequests Expenditure 378 30,653 53,700 23,047 42.9%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 215,746 2,676,744 3,693,778 1,017,034 27.5%

15 



Month of April 

2019

Year to Date 

June 30, 2019
Fiscal Year 

2019 Budget

Budget 

Remaining

% of Budget 

Remaining Footnotes

Cash at July 1, 2018 5,805,624

Revenue received to date 2,217,641

Expenditures to date 2,676,744

Estimated cash at April 30, 2019 5,346,521

FOOTNOTES

1 Majority of tax income received in December & May.

2 Received more for grant than budgeted.

3 County's investment of income resulting in greater interest income.

4 Quarterly Boone Trust contribution.

5 Foundation Support for The Big Read.

6 Unemployment Insurance rate percentage  higher than expected. 

7 W.C. Code Reclassifications - Driver's must be classified at full time.

8 Expenses paid at the beginning of the year to cover the entire year.

9 Yearly Audit charges.

10 Books and Materials on track overall.

FY2019 FY2018 FY2017

BUDGETED Actual Actual

Depreciation Reserve Fund

Balance Forward 2,922,325 2,210,325 1,710,325

Approved Fund Transfer 700,000 712,000 500,000

Main Branch Remodel Project -3,000,000 0 0

Total Depreciation Reserve Fund $622,325 $2,922,325 $2,210,325

16 



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

Ordinary Income/Expense
Expense

2  Maintenance & Operations
Automobile Expense

Gas
Automobile/Bookmobile fuel charges. 02/15-03/14/19.Holiday Companies04/04/2019 277.27

Total Gas 277.27

277.27Total Automobile Expense

BVF Retreat/Spring Mtng/Admin
91.92BVF annual retreat - food.John Finn04/04/2019

Birds & Beasleys. BVF Spring Retreat speaker gifts.Chase Card Services04/04/2019 54.00

145.92Total BVF Retreat/Spring Mtng/Admin

Continuing Education
Lodging

1,256.18VRBO. Architects and staff trip to Calgary. 04/2019.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
376.33VRBO. Architects and staff trip to Calgary. 04/2019.Chase Card Services04/04/2019

Beckstrom, M. "ALA IFC" 2019 meeting. 03/21-03/24/19. Chicago, IL.MATTBECKSTROM04/18/2019 524.79

2,157.30Total Lodging

Meals
39.39Courier lunches. 03/2019.ERICWALLIMAN04/04/2019
56.00MLA. Finn, J. "MLA 2019" meals. 04/10-04/13/19. Helena, MT.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
50.00MLA. White, R. "MLA 2019" meals. 04/10-04/13/19. Helena, MT.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
50.00MLA. Hudson, M. "MLA 2019" meals. 04/10-04/13/19. Helena, MT.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
50.00MLA. Beckstrom, M. "MLA 2019" meals. 04/10-04/13/19. Helena, MT.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
50.00MLA. Dickerson, H. "MLA 2019" meals. 04/10-04/13/19. Helena, MT.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
98.87The Windbag Saloon. Lunch with staff and architects.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
10.00Herring, H. Rotation meal - Augusta. 04/05/19.Holly Herring04/18/2019
27.40White, R. Lincoln/Augusta firewall repair - meals. 02/12 & 02/19/19.RONALDWHITE04/18/2019

144.00Sternberg, T. "Redesign Team Field Trip" out-of-state per diem. Calgary, AB, CAN. 04/...PATRICIASTERNBERG04/25/2019
144.00Beckstrom, M. "Redesign Team Field Trip" out-of-state per diem. Calgary, AB, CAN. 04...MATTBECKSTROM04/25/2019
144.00Fandrich, H. "Redesign Team Field Trip" out-of-state per diem. Calgary, AB, CAN. 04/2...Helen Fandrich04/25/2019
144.00Parrott, J. "Redesign Team Field Trip" out-of-state per diem. Calgary, AB, CAN. 04/29...James Parrott04/25/2019

Skelton, L. "Redesign Team Field Trip" out-of-state per diem. Calgary, AB, CAN. 04/29...Lisa Skelton04/25/2019 144.00

1,151.66Total Meals

Registration
225.00MLA. Finn, J. "MLA 2019" registration. 04/10-04/13/19. Helena, MT.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
225.00MLA. White, R. "MLA 2019" registration. 04/10-04/13/19. Helena, MT.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
275.00MLA. Hudson, M. "MLA 2019" registration. 04/10-04/13/19. Helena, MT.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
225.00MLA. Beckstrom, M. "MLA 2019" registration. 04/10-04/13/19. Helena, MT.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
275.00MLA. Dickerson, H. "MLA 2019" registration. 04/10-04/13/19. Helena, MT.Chase Card Services04/04/2019

MLA. Sternberg, T. "MLA 2019" registration. 04/10-04/13/19. Helena, MT.Chase Card Services04/04/2019 275.00

1,500.00Total Registration

Transportation/Travel
Dickerson, H. "ALA Annual Conference" airfare. Washington, D.C. 06/20-06/23/19.HEATHERDICKERSON04/04/2019 783.00

Total Transportation/Travel 783.00

5,591.96Total Continuing Education

Lewis & Clark Library
05/05/19 General Ledger

April 2019Cash Basis

17 



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

Contracted Services
Adult Services Programming

31.98Pokemon Go event - cookies for programming.RACHELRIVERS04/04/2019
4.99Van's Thriftway. Civics book group cookies.Chase Card Services04/04/2019

141.19Amazon. Civics book group books.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
142.24Amazon. Civics book group books.Chase Card Services04/04/2019

1.47Bed Bath & Beyond. Exhobit cases - supplies.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
14.68Amazon. Crafting program supplies.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
30.78Van's Thriftway. Game Night food. 02/26/19.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
31.00Little Caesar's. Game Night pizza. 02/26/19.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
87.99Amazon. Civics book group books.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
23.22Amazon. Crafting program supplies.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
2.99Amazon. David Quammen author event - Kindle book.Chase Card Services04/04/2019

24.97Costco. Art Opening REception - cups and cookies. 03/01/19.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
293.25Murry's. Author David Quammen event - dinner.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
56.75Costco. Author David Quammen event - dinner and supplies.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
15.60A-1 Rentals. Author David Quammen event - dinner plate rental.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
25.80Super 1. Author David Quammen event - author care kit.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
67.25The Brewhouse. Author David Quammen event - staff dinner after.Chase Card Services04/04/2019

9.99Amazon. Mystery book group - Kindle book.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
11.99Amazon. Premier book group - Kindle book.Chase Card Services04/04/2019

167.85Doubletree Hotels. Author David Quammen event - lodging. 03/05-03/06/19.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
17.96Van's Thriftway. Book group refreshments.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
5.07Amazon. Discussion kit replacement book.Chase Card Services04/04/2019

Origami workshop. 04/14/19.Edith Kort04/18/2019 100.00

1,309.01Total Adult Services Programming

Advertising & Publicity
250.00Invoice #6542. Magazine advertising. 04/2019.Montana Parent04/04/2019
566.67Invoice #18431-48. KCAP-AM radio advertising. 03/01-03/31/19.Montana Radio Company04/04/2019
560.00Invoice #142925-6. Television advertising. 03/01-03/31/19.KXLH-TV04/04/2019
450.00Invoice #137608-8. KXLH video advertising. 03/01-03/31/19.KTVH04/04/2019

58.59Facebook.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
Multiple invoices. Newspaper advertising. 03/04-03/28/19.Independent Record Advertising04/18/2019 51.00

1,936.26Total Advertising & Publicity

Augusta Programming
9.97Amazon. Augusta book club book.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
9.97Amazon. Augusta book club book.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
9.97Amazon. Augusta book club book.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
9.97Amazon. Augusta book club book.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
9.97Amazon. Augusta book club book.Chase Card Services04/04/2019

Augusta Community Calendar advertising. 2019-2020.Augusta Youth Center04/18/2019 40.00

89.85Total Augusta Programming

Bookmobile Programming
Amazon. Bookmobile first aid supplies, and cribbage game.Chase Card Services04/04/2019 49.45

49.45Total Bookmobile Programming

Collection Fee
Invoice #551360. Collection placement fee. 03/2019.UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICE...04/18/2019 107.40

107.40Total Collection Fee

East Helena Programming
15.77Dan Henry musical performance - treats for teens and public. 03/15/19.DIANEPOTTER04/04/2019

EHB - teen snacks and plates.Andrea Eckerson04/18/2019 12.96

28.73Total East Helena Programming

Lewis & Clark Library
05/05/19 General Ledger

April 2019Cash Basis

18 



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

Teen Services Programming
48.83Domino's Pizza. Pizza for teen event. 02/22/19.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
58.56Walmart. Safe Sitter and STEM Roundup - snacks and beverages.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
50.94Amazon. Teen books.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
13.51Amazon. Teen books.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
24.93Safeway. Safesitter snacks.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
15.13Amazon. Teen books.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
12.91Amazon. Teen books.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
32.95Teacherspayteachers. Teen Wellness and Read Woke programming materials.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
12.47Amazon. Teen books.Chase Card Services04/04/2019

233.96Target. Teen space board games.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
Costco. ACT cram packet materials.Chase Card Services04/04/2019 102.19

606.38Total Teen Services Programming

Contracted Services - Other
93.00Invoice #1622152. Helena weekly water. 03/26/19.LEHRKIND'S GIANT SPRINGS04/04/2019
12.00Invoice #181255. EHB equipment rental. 03/26/19.LEHRKIND'S GIANT SPRINGS04/04/2019
12.50Invoice #180785. Monthly tank rental - upstairs. 03/26/19.LEHRKIND'S GIANT SPRINGS04/04/2019
12.50Invoice #180785. Monthly tank rental - downstairs. 03/26/19.LEHRKIND'S GIANT SPRINGS04/04/2019

659.10Invoice #22029433. Contracted employment. 03/13/19.Express Services, Inc.04/04/2019
659.10Invoice #22062211. Contracted employment. 03/20/19.Express Services, Inc.04/04/2019
225.00Invoice #6073. Helena plant maintenance. 04/2019.Keeping It Green04/04/2019

6.00City of Helena transfer station recycling fee. 02/28/19.CITY OF HELENA04/04/2019
659.10Invoice #22072925. Contracted employment. 03/26/19.Express Services, Inc.04/04/2019

77.50Invoice #1626966. Helena weekly water. 04/09/19.LEHRKIND'S GIANT SPRINGS04/18/2019
Invoice #22108984. Contracted employment. 04/03/19.Express Services, Inc.04/18/2019 659.10

Total Contracted Services - Other 3,074.90

7,201.98Total Contracted Services

Interlibrary Loan Fees
Paypal. Replacement ILL for item lost/damaged by LCL patron.04/04/2019 Chase Card Services 4.95

4.95Total Interlibrary Loan Fees

Legal Notices & Recruitments
210.95Silver Star. Interview dinner Children's Librarian. 03/06/19.Chase Card Services04/04/2019

Silver Star. Interview dinner Childrens Librarian. 03/07/19.Chase Card Services04/04/2019 156.65

367.60Total Legal Notices & Recruitments

Mileage Reimbursements
68.53Herring, H. Rotation mileage - Augusta. 04/05/19.Holly Herring04/18/2019

White, R. Lincoln/Augusta firewall repair - mileage. 02/12 & 02/19/19.RONALDWHITE04/18/2019 96.12

164.65Total Mileage Reimbursements

Postage and Delivery
8.32EHB postal expenses.Andrea Eckerson04/04/2019

Invoice #MZI 33119. Courier delivery - from Lewis & Clark Library.Montana Air Cartage04/18/2019 90.00

98.32Total Postage and Delivery

Printing
Invoice #92174. 25 @ 2020 preliminary budget.04/04/2019 Action Print 336.00

336.00Total Printing

Lewis & Clark Library
05/05/19 General Ledger

April 2019Cash Basis

19 



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

Professional Fees
Accounting

Invoice #19-LCL1. TSYS/County account - deposit/reconciliation issue troubleshooting.BEHIND THE SCENES04/04/2019 93.75

93.75Total Accounting

Consulting
781.25Collaborative consensus skills training, coaching, and emails with staff.Brave Conversations04/04/2019

Mediation/consulting work contract. 1/3 installment payment.Brave Conversations04/18/2019 4,320.83

Total Consulting 5,102.08

5,195.83Total Professional Fees

Refunds
13.00Refund for lost item paid for.04/04/2019
20.00Refund for lost item paid for.04/04/2019

Refund for lost item paid for.04/04/2019 16.00

49.00Total Refunds

Rents and Leases
Invoice #MAY2019. EHB rent payment.04/18/2019 Errol F. Bjerke 2,000.00

2,000.00Total Rents and Leases

Repairs & Maintenance
Building Repair & Maintenance

1,770.00Helena parking lot plowing/sanding/sidewalks/ice removal. 02/03-03/28/19.White's Plowing Service04/04/2019
625.00EHB parking lot plowing. 02/03-03/28/19.White's Plowing Service04/04/2019

2,490.00Invoice #19372. 04/2019 janitorial service.Service Master04/04/2019
70.18Invoice #S506339801.001. Helena - replacement LED's for lobby track lighting.Crescent Electric Supply Company04/04/2019

6.49Invoice #166357. Ice melt for Lincoln sidewalks.Grizzly Hardware04/18/2019
Augusta branch window washing. 04/11/2019.Holly Herring04/18/2019 20.00

4,981.67Total Building Repair & Maintenance

Furniture Repair & Acquisition
1,092.60Invoice #839. Blinds for staff offices.Home Beautifiers04/04/2019

947.00The Human Solution. Staff member standing desk.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
179.00The Human Solution. Standing desk converter for staff.Chase Card Services04/04/2019

Amazon. Video game shelving unit.Chase Card Services04/04/2019 31.61

2,250.21Total Furniture Repair & Acquisition

Systems Repair & Upgrades
25.00Intuit. Quickbooks monthly support.Chase Card Services04/04/2019

Invoice #NAS-135653. 2 @ 13" touchscreen LCD 2-in-1 notebooks.Information Technology Core, LLC04/18/2019 3,120.00

Total Systems Repair & Upgrades 3,145.00

10,376.88Total Repairs & Maintenance

Supplies
Computer

Invoice #PP-135600. 03/2019 printer usage per page billing - all branches.Information Technology Core, LLC04/18/2019 370.87

370.87Total Computer

Lewis & Clark Library
05/05/19 General Ledger

April 2019Cash Basis

20 



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

Janitorial
29.71Invoice #LBIL1477858. Cleaning towels for janitorial staff.Alsco04/04/2019
26.37Invoice #LBIL1476152. Cleaning towels for janitorial staff.Alsco04/04/2019

397.00Invoice #762200. Jumbo toilet tissue, facial tissue, glass cleaner, and vinyl gloves.Montana World Trade04/04/2019
25.38Invoice #LBIL1479593. Cleaning towels for janitorial staff.Alsco04/04/2019
25.38Invoice #LBIL1481324. Cleaning towels for janitorial staff.Alsco04/18/2019

Invoice #LBIL1483064. Cleaning towels for janitorial staff.Alsco04/18/2019 26.04

529.88Total Janitorial

Office
10.90Amazon. Tape dispenser for staff.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
57.37Uline. Jiffylite bubble mailers for ILL mailing.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
52.96Amazon. Clear, transparent tape for Public Services, and staff cubicle hooks.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
89.97Costco. Shelving for staff office.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
17.98Amazon. Staff cubicle coat hooks.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
21.46Amazon. Plastic binder dividers and new reconciliation binder for Admin.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
20.03Bulb America. Staff desk lamp replacement bulb.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
48.96EHB - storage containers for basement materials.Andrea Eckerson04/18/2019

Invoice #2255982591. 6 cases of copy paper.STAPLES CREDIT PLAN04/18/2019 240.96

560.59Total Office

Supplies - Other
128.40New staff member/MLA baskets.PATRICIASPENCER04/04/2019
60.00Vanilla Bean. All-Staff treat - Staff graduation celebration cake.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
11.02Amazon. MLA Cates basket materials.Chase Card Services04/04/2019

22.54Amazon. MLA Cates basket materials.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
25.28Safeway. Coffee Klatch snacks.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
32.70Park Avenue Bakery. Architect's meeting cookies. 03/15/19.Chase Card Services04/04/2019

MLA reception children's area reception basket.Molly O. Hudson04/18/2019 166.09

Total Supplies - Other 446.03

1,907.37Total Supplies

Telephone
Local Service

99.98Invoice #0100299032119. EHB business telephone service. 04/01-04/30/19.Charter Communiations04/04/2019
39.20Lincoln basic telephone service. 04/01-04/30/19.LINCOLN TELEPHONE COMPANY04/04/2019
35.10Augusta local telephone service. 04/01-04/30/19.3 RIVERS TELEPHONE COOPERAT...04/04/2019
44.64Phone service - block of 20 sequential numbers. 02/19-03/18/19.CenturyLink04/18/2019
79.93Phone service - digital phone lines. 02/19/19-03/18/19.CenturyLink04/18/2019

T-1 digital phone lines. 04/01-04/30/19.CenturyLink04/18/2019 578.78

877.63Total Local Service

Long Distance
32.64Invoice #1464332627. Helena long distance. 02/16-03/15/19.CenturyLink Communications04/04/2019
37.93Lincoln fax line. 04/01-04/30/19.LINCOLN TELEPHONE COMPANY04/04/2019
12.76Augusta long distance. 02/16/19-03/15/19.3 RIVERS TELEPHONE COOPERAT...04/04/2019

Augusta fax line. 04/01-04/30/19.3 RIVERS TELEPHONE COOPERAT...04/04/2019 31.59

114.92Total Long Distance

Lewis & Clark Library
05/05/19 General Ledger

April 2019Cash Basis

21 



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

Network/Data Lines
43.75Bookmobile internet service. 02/04-03/03/19.AT&T Mobility04/04/2019

280.19Invoice #9826167884. Bookmobile phone and mobile hotspots. 02/14-03/13/19.Verizon Wireless04/04/2019
344.97Invoice #9826354825. Six staff - cell phone charges. 02/17-03/16/19.Verizon Wireless04/04/2019
114.98Invoice #0100299032119. EHB business internet service. 04/01-04/30/19.Charter Communiations04/04/2019
77.80Lincoln internet service. 04/01-04/30/19.LINCOLN TELEPHONE COMPANY04/04/2019
61.95Augusta internet service. 04/01-04/30/19.3 RIVERS TELEPHONE COOPERAT...04/04/2019

Bookmobile internet service. 03/04-04/03/19.AT&T Mobility04/18/2019 44.78

Total Network/Data Lines 968.42

1,960.97Total Telephone

Utilities
Gas and Electric

497.47Invoice #101506. Lincoln propane fill. 03/25/19.Mountain View Co-op04/04/2019
96.13Lincoln power bill. 03/01-03/31/19.NorthWestern Energy04/18/2019

238.68East Helena power bill. 03/07-04/02/19.NorthWestern Energy04/18/2019
203.12Augusta branch power bill. 03/08-04/08/19.NorthWestern Energy04/18/2019

Helena branch power bill. 03/10-04/08/19.NorthWestern Energy04/18/2019 4,234.46

5,269.86Total Gas and Electric

Water/Sewer/Sanitation
110.85EHB water/sewer/sanitation services. 03/29/19.City of East Helena04/04/2019

526.84Helena water usage. 02/05-03/05/19.CITY OF HELENA04/04/2019
Invoice #0670-000141999. Lincoln garbage service. 03/01-05/31/19.Republic Services04/18/2019 39.87

Total Water/Sewer/Sanitation 677.56

Total Utilities 5,947.42

41,626.12Total 2  Maintenance & Operations

4 Books & Materials
AV - Adult

870.80Invoice #76202264. Adult A/V materials.RECORDED BOOKS04/04/2019
175.50Invoice #762555. Adult A/V materials.MicroMarketing LLC04/04/2019
297.00Invoice #76200093. Adult A/V materials.RECORDED BOOKS04/04/2019
40.50Invoice #761842. Adult A/V materials.MicroMarketing LLC04/04/2019
86.38Invoice #762026. Adult A/V materials.MicroMarketing LLC04/04/2019
30.00Invoice #1087699811. Adult A/V materials - replacement CD's.Penguin Random House04/04/2019

474.00Invoice #76210248. Adult A/V materials.RECORDED BOOKS04/18/2019
20.60Invoice #76209782. Juvenile A/V materials.RECORDED BOOKS04/18/2019
20.00Invoice #1088031434. Adult A/V materials - replacement CD's.Penguin Random House04/18/2019

Invoice #76202998. Adult A/V materials - replacement CD's.RECORDED BOOKS04/18/2019 13.90

2,028.68Total AV - Adult

AV - Juvenile
Invoice #762310. Juvenile A/V materials.04/04/2019 MicroMarketing LLC 20.00

20.00Total AV - Juvenile

Lewis & Clark Library
05/05/19 General Ledger

April 2019Cash Basis

22 



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

Downloadable Media
87.00Invoice #4012497036. Axis360 eBook account.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
87.00Invoice #4012497035. Axis360 eBook account.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
87.00Invoice #4012497034. Axis360 eBook account.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
87.00Invoice #4012497033. Axis360 eBook account.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
60.00Invoice #4012503805. Axis360 eBook account.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
60.00Invoice #4012503804. Axis360 eBook account.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
20.99Invoice #4012510868. Axis360 eBook account.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
20.99Invoice #4012510869. Axis360 eBook account.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
20.99Invoice #4012514513. Axis360 eBook account.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/18/2019
87.00Invoice #4012524901. Axis360 eBook account.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/18/2019

Invoice #4012524902. Axis360 eBook account.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/18/2019 87.00

704.97Total Downloadable Media

FDN Purchase of Books
104.83Invoice #4012495701. Adult materials.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
350.93Invoice #66767041. Adult Large-Type materials.Gale04/04/2019
450.09Invoice #4012494387. Adult materials.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
344.80Invoice #4012491986. Adult materials.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
167.94Invoice #66825766. Adult Large-Type materials.Gale04/04/2019
85.47Invoice #66826325. Adult Large-Type materials.Gale04/04/2019

317.18Invoice #4012502155. Adult materials.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
47.23Invoice #66803953. Adult Large-Type materials.Gale04/04/2019

385.75Invoice #4012499666. Adult materials.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
28.49Invoice #66793123. Adult Large-Type materials.Gale04/04/2019
29.24Invoice #66793493. Adult Large-Type materials.Gale04/04/2019
47.23Invoice #66795528. Adult Large-Type materials.Gale04/04/2019

369.23Invoice #4012509030. Grab-N-Go/Lucky Day materials.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/18/2019
652.07Invoice #4012506228. Adult materials.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/18/2019
233.96Invoice #66833992. Adult Large-Type materials.Gale04/18/2019

83.97Invoice #66825921. Adult Large-Type materials.Gale04/18/2019
27.74Invoice #66914625. Adult Large-Type materials.Gale04/18/2019
26.99Invoice #66914893. Adult Large-Type materials.Gale04/18/2019
27.74Invoice #66915119. Adult Large-Type materials.Gale04/18/2019

791.27Invoice #4012516249. Adult materials.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/18/2019
Invoice #4012518523. Grab-N-Go/Lucky Day materials.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/18/2019 135.48

4,707.63Total FDN Purchase of Books

Juvenile Material
20.02Invoice #4012492031. Juvenile materials.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019

449.81Invoice #4012502094. Juvenile materials.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
305.25Invoice #4012502077. Juvenile materials - JP & JE account.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019

19.96Invoice #4012500361. Juvenile materials - No Processing account.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
18.21Invoice #4012516232. Juvenile materials - JP & JE account.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/18/2019

Invoice #4012516184. Juvenile materials.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/18/2019 17.58

830.83Total Juvenile Material

Periodicals
1 year subscription, 4 issues, to "Big Sky Small Acres."04/18/2019 MSU Extension Distribution Center 16.00

16.00Total Periodicals

Preservation & Processing
04/04/2019 BRODART 128.40Invoice #524585. 12 @ empty discring binders, and 300 @ empty binder sleeves.

111.32Invoice #6566102. Semi-Rigid CircExtenders, and adhesive remover.Demco, Inc.04/04/2019
315.00Invoice #194036. 1,000 Sci-Fi book labels, and 3,000 Mystery book labels.Allegra Print & Imaging04/04/2019

04/18/2019 BRODART 138.80Invoice #526638. Empty disc-ring binders and 3/4 tape-magic plus.
Invoice #194354. 2 books trimmed for book binding.Allegra Print & Imaging04/18/2019 10.00

703.52Total Preservation & Processing

Lewis & Clark Library
05/05/19 General Ledger

April 2019Cash Basis

23 



Date Name Memo Paid Amount

Teen Material
211.04Invoice #4012502076. Teen materials - Non-Fiction account.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
601.92Invoice #4012500814. Teen materials.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
46.89Invoice #4012500322. Teen materials.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019
24.44Invoice #4012497227. Teen materials.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019

Invoice #4012497356. Teen materials - Non-Fiction account.Baker & Taylor, Inc04/04/2019 12.52

Total Teen Material 896.81

9,908.44Total 4 Books & Materials

Grants and Bequests Expenditure
Foundation Contribution Expense

29.97Amazon. 2019 WISHLIST. Books for Babies/Toys for Tots programming items.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
205.06Amazon. 2019 WISHLIST. Books for Babies/Toys for Tots programming items.Chase Card Services04/04/2019

13.75Amazon. 2019 WISHLIST. Books for Babies/Toys for Tots programming items.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
10.72Amazon. 2019 WISHLIST. Books for Babies/Toys for Tots programming items.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
47.97Amazon. 2019 WISHLIST. Books for Babies/Toys for Tots programming items.Chase Card Services04/04/2019
33.00FY2019 WISHLIST. B&B/T4T board book purchase.Beth Pofahl04/18/2019

Augusta Book Bingo prize. 04/01/19.Holly Herring04/18/2019 37.19

Total Foundation Contribution Expense 377.66

Total Grants and Bequests Expenditure 377.66

Total Expense 51,912.22

Lewis & Clark Library
05/05/19 General Ledger

April 2019Cash Basis

24 



 
 
 

Personnel Report 
 

 

 

April 2019 
 
 

Hires 
 

Molly O. Hudson, Children’s Services Librarian 

Effective 4/1/2019 $22.25 
 

Resignations 
 

None. 
 

25 



BYLAWS OF 
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE LEWIS & CLARK LIBRARY 

 
The following bylaws, in accordance with Title 22, Chapter 1 M.C.A., govern the Board of Trustees of 
the Lewis & Clark Library (the "Board") which was established by an INTERLOCAL LIBRARY 
CONTRACT between the City of Helena, Montana, and the County of Lewis and Clark, Montana, 
dated October 11, 1974, and amended on April 13, 2004. 
 
ARTICLE I.  OFFICERS 
 
Section 1. Officers 
The officers of the Board are the Chair and Vice-Chair, who have the authority and duties described 
in these bylaws.  The Board may elect other officers as it deems necessary. 
 
Section 2.  Election and Term of Office 
The officers of the Board shall be elected annually by the Board at its regular meeting held in July of 
each year.  If the Board holds no meeting in July, or if a quorum of Trustees is not present at the July 
meeting, such elections shall be held at the next official meeting.  Each officer elected takes office 
immediately and holds office until a successor shall have been elected.  New offices may be created 
and filled at any meeting of the Board.  The term of office for all officers is one year.  Candidates 
forwarded by a nominating committee must be considered by the Board, but others may also be 
considered. 
 
Section 3.  Removal 
Any officer of the Board may be replaced by the Board whenever in its judgment the best interests 
of the Library would be served thereby.  A motion to replace an officer must receive the votes of all 
other trustees for passage. 
 
Section 4.  Vacancies 
A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise, shall 
be filled by the Board for the unexpired portion of the term.  
 
Section 5. Chair 
The Chair  presides at all meetings,  appoints all standing and special committees and  performs all 
duties incident to the office of chair and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board from 
time to time.  The Chair is an ex-officio member of all committees excepting the Nominating 
Committee. 
 
Section 6. Vice-Chair 
In the absence of the Chair, or in the event of the Chair's inability or refusal to act, the Vice-Chair 
assumes all the duties of the chair.  The Vice-Chair shall perform such other duties as from time to 
time may be assigned by the Chair or the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 

26 



Section 7. Secretary 
The Library Director is the non-voting Secretary to the Board.  The Secretary arranges for minutes of 
the regular and special meetings of the Board to be kept in one or more books provided for that 
purpose; insures that all notices are duly given in accordance with these bylaws and state statutes, 
and is the custodian of the records of the Board.  The Secretary shall perform such other duties as 
the Board may from time to time prescribe. 
 
ARTICLE II.  DUTIES OF THE BOARD 
 
Section 1.  The Board has the powers and duties specified in 22-1-309 M.C.A. 
 
Section 2.  The Board may carry out any duty or lawful action by specific motion or by adoption of 
governing policies. 
 
ARTICLE III.   MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
Section 1.  Regular Meetings 
The Board shall meet monthly unless by majority vote it chooses to skip a month.  Meeting dates 
and times will be set quarterly. 
 
Section 2.  Special Meetings 
Special meetings may be called at any time by the Chair or by any two members of the Board. 
 
Section 3. Place and time of Meetings 
All regular meetings of the Board will normally be held in the Lewis & Clark Library Main Branch 
unless another place is designated by the Board.  Meeting times will be during hours the library is 
open to the public.  Special meetings shall be held at the time and place designated in the notice of 
the meeting, but if no place is specified in the notice then the meetings shall be held in the Lewis & 
Clark Library – Helena Main Library. 
 
Section 4. Notice of Meetings 
Written notice stating the place, day and time of all regular and special meetings shall be delivered 
either personally or by mail or e-mail to all members of the Board by the Secretary not less than 
three (3) days before the date of any meeting.  In case of a special meeting the purpose of the 
meeting shall be stated in the notice.  A schedule of all meetings shall be made available to the 
public, and proper notice of all meetings provided as specified by law. 
 
Section 5. Quorum 
A majority of the members of the Board is a quorum.  If less than a quorum is present at any 
meeting of the Board, the members present may only hear presentations, discuss matters to be 
brought before the Board in the future, and adjourn the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27 



Section 6. Manner of Acting 
Actions of the Board must be proposed by motion of a trustee, duly seconded. 
 
The votes of a majority of the trustees present are necessary for the adoption of any motion unless 
a greater number is required by law or these bylaws. 
 
ARTICLE IV.  LIBRARY DIRECTOR - LIBRARY PERSONNEL 
 
Section 1. Appointment of Library Director 
The Board shall appoint and set the compensation of the Library Director who shall serve at the 
pleasure of the Board. 
 
Section 2. Appointment of Library Personnel 
With the recommendation of the Library Director, the Board shall employ and discharge such other 
persons as may be necessary in the administration of the affairs of the library, fix and pay their 
salaries and compensation and prescribe their duties.  The Library Director may hire such persons 
temporarily, subject to approval by the Board. 
 
Section 3. Duties of Library Director 
The Library Director shall serve as secretary to the Board as provided in Article I of these bylaws.  
The Library Director shall execute and administer the policies adopted by the Board, and shall, in 
addition, be responsible for the direction and supervision of the library staff and for the operation 
of the library itself.   The Library Director shall submit periodic reports to the Board, but not less 
than monthly, of the condition and finances of the library and shall make recommendations to the 
Board of such policies and procedures as will promote the efficiency of the library and its service to 
the people it serves.  The Library Director will annually propose a budget for the Board's 
consideration. 
 
The Library Director is hereby authorized to pay vendors, personnel and other expenses of the 
library in a timely manner, and all such payments must be reported to the Board for confirmation at 
the next meeting. 
 
ARTICLE V.  ROLE OF OTHER LIBRARY BOARDS 
 
In the event that the Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees exercises its authority, through 
inter-local agreement or inter-library contract, to provide library services to other governing entities 
(counties, municipalities, etc.), the Lewis & Clark Library Board shall retain legal and administrative 
authority for those library services.   
 
Any community to which library service is being provided may petition the board to appoint a local 
library advisory board. 
 
ARTICLE VI.  PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 
 
The rules contained in most recent edition of Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised shall govern 
the Lewis & Clark Library Board of Trustees in all cases to which they are applicable and in which 
they are not inconsistent with these bylaws and any special rules of order the Lewis & Clark Library 
Board of Trustees may adopt.     

28 



 
ARTICLE VII.  AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS 
 
These bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed and new bylaws may be adopted by a majority 
of the Trustees present at any regular meeting or at any special meeting, if at least three days' 
written notice is given of the intention to alter, amend, or repeal, or to adopt new bylaws at such 
meeting. 
 

Originally adopted on the 21st day of March, 1978. 
 

Reviewed and amended on the 21st day of August, 2007. 
 

Reviewed and amended on the 16th day of December, 2008. 
 

Reviewed on the 28th day of June, 2011. 
 

Reviewed and amended on the 21st day of May, 2013. 
 

Reviewed and amended on the 20st day of April, 2016. 
 

First Reading May 21, 2019 
 
 

29 



Branch Highlights for April 2019 

 
Augusta Branch Highlights 

 The Library had a visit from the Augusta Preschool 
o Holly read Looking for A Moose  

 Holly organized another STEAM program about Corvids for the After School Program  

 Elk Creek Colony kids had poetry projects on display at the branch for National Poetry 
month  

 Holly had a successful "Trivia Night" which will continue next month as "Trivial Pursuit 
Game Night"  

 The Book Club had a great discussion about Lucinda Herring's book Reimagining Death 

 The telescope and supplies have been purchased and H.A.S. outreach coordinator, Jeff, 
will help Holly put it all together soon! 

 
 
 
East Helena Branch Highlights 

 

 East Helena Branch was treated to two visits from 

Exploration Works in April   

o The first was a spring activity and the second 

involved botany bonanza   

o EHB tends to get an average audience when they 

are presenting   

 Story time also featured planting seeds and reading about 

how plants get roots and grow 

 Teens used an Atlas and road maps to make up individual 

travel plans within the State, country, and world   

o They plotted their route and found out the difference in 

costs between modes of transportation   

 Teens also made paintings for Mother’s Day gifts and 

selected pots and seeds to take home to grow 

 Andrea visited EVMS and handed out monthly library 

schedules   

o She will also be giving out summer reading program 

schedules to about 30 students   

 Heather visited early in the month with blackout poetry 

  

 

 

30 



 EHB began their bi-lingual story time sessions   

o The presenter will come one Wednesday 

a month to enlighten our children on 

sounds, words, and putting words with 

pictures 

 

 

 

 

 

               

 

Lincoln Branch Highlights 

 The story time numbers are increasing, we now have 10 coming!  

 Lincoln staff is still doing two events every month with Tammie doing felting and 
knitting 

 The snow birds are coming home 

 The travel trailers with tourists are traveling through, and some are stopping in 
to visit the library 
 

31 




